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Blackened Ruins ___

Destruction of

Queen's Avenue Methodist

Church and Wesley Hall-A Surprise for

4

Many ot the Members—Bare Walls Mark the
Site of One of London’s Largest Public Build-

ings—The Brigade's Desperate Battle With
the Flames—Kindly Offers From Sister
Churches—Interesting Reminiscences.

Creat Infleed was the surprise that
awaited many of the members of the
congregation of the Queen’s Avenue
Methodist Church when they neared
their accustomed place of worship yes-
terday morning and found a pile of

black and smoking ruins where for over
40 years has stood one of the finest
churches in the city. Not a stick that
could burn from basement to tower re-
mained, and behind the church was the
ruins of Wesley Hall, not so completely
destroyed, but rendered utterly value-
less. Nothing but bare brick walls—
good solid walls, bearing, by the way,
every trace of having been most sub-
stantially put together, and standing
a silent witness to the thorough mason-
ry of the 50’s, as against the papier-
mache tendency of the present day.
The feelings of some of the worshipers
can be better imagined than described.
Many had gone to the Queen’s Avenue
Church all their lives, and had grown
up with it, and the demolition, so unex-
pected and so complete, came upon them
with stunning force as they walked
about, Bible and hymn books in hand,
or stood in little groups and talked the
matter over.
FELT LIKE CRYING.

“T feel just like having a good cry,”
one middle-aged lady was saying to an-
other. “I feel as if my home had been
burned over my head.”

Expressions of sorrow and regret were
heard on every hand, while one man of
a philosophic turn seemed to take a
great deal of comfort in remarking,
“Well, there is one blessing; the fire
might have visited a poorer congrega-
tion.”

Queen’s Avenue was the pioneer of
London Methodism, and the largest
Protestant church in the city. It num-
bered among its congregation many of
London’s most prominent and wealthy
citizens, and while that was so it num-
bered also some of the other extreme.
It was a church for the masses, and
there were no class distinctions. The
poor man felt just as much at ease as
the wearer of broadcloth. The church
was an historic pile, and many of the
great men of the Methodist ministry
have spoken from its pulpit. Gen_eral
Booth completely filled the vast edifice
just a week ago tonight, while only in
September last its walls re-echoed with
the voices of clergymen from all parts
of the earth gathered together conduct-
ing the business of the Methodist Quad-
rennial Conference,

THE ALARM.

It was just 11:39 when a man rushed
up to P. C. Green at the corner of Park
Avenue and Dundas street, and told him
to call the brigade—that the church was
on fire. About the same time Harry
Cromarty, a coupe driver for Brow_n's
livery, dashed down the street, urging
his horse towards the flre hall. He was
going a trifle faster than the law al-
lows, but it was a case of necessity. It
was from this man that the brigade re-
ceived its first intimation of the fire at
11:40 p.m. About the same time a tele-
phone message was received from Mrs.
George F. Jewell, who lives near the
church. Mr. Clare Powell and a couple
of other young men were passing on
Queen’s avenue just as the flames burst
from the windows on the west side of
the building, directly over the furnace.

This was before the firemen arrived,
and the young men broke open ‘he
front door and made their way into the
vestibule. They got inside just in time
to see the flames bursting through the
floor in every direction. In fact, the fire
must have been raging for some time
in the basement before it broke through
and was discovered.

MADE GOOD TIME.

The fire brigade had two streams on
in less than two minutes after they got
the alarm, and other streams followed
fast, until water was playing on the
building from seven different branches.
Five thousand feet of hose were laid,
from the corner of Queen’s avenue
and Park avenue; Dundas and Park
avenue; Dundas street, in front
of W. J. Reid’s; Queen’s avenue and
Richmond street, and from the hydrant
in front of the Bank of Montreal. So
many streams were laid that the pres-
sure on two of them was very weak,
indeed.

Within five minutes of the first dis-
covery of the fire, flames were
mounting heavenward with a roar
from every window in the
place. This lit up the sky and
brought hundreds running from every
portion of the city. The position of the
glare led many to think that one of the
business blocks was burning, and as
the fire appeared to grow fiercer for at
least an hour thousands found their way
down town.

THE GALLERIES FALL.

By 12 o'clock, so fiercely did the fire
burn, the galleries fell in with the floor,
and a shower of sparks shot upwards.
Small darts of flame started to creep
and play around the spire, while the
roof was fast becoming a prey to the
devouring element. The firemen had
long before realized that it was only a
waste of water, pouring it into the fiery
cauldron that the church interior pre-
sented, and they set to work to save
Wesley Hall and Mrs. Hiscox’s house
on the west side. For awhile it was
Aoubtful if they would save either. A
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obedient yet to the caprices of the at-
mosphere, industriously pointed north-
easterly. Behind the spire was a
cloud of light, with its shower of
myriads of ever-changing ever-cir-
culating sparks. And against this
brilliant background stood the tow-
eér, every linament and angle ra-
diant in flame. For a time it stolidly
refused to bend before the flery storm.
At last, with a tremor, the peak totter-
ed and fell outward, while the balance
of the structure appeared to be drawn
irresistibly into the furnace of flame.
A resounding report and a brilliant
cloud of tiny sparks marked the down-
fall of the tower, and watchers breath-
ed freer, thinking the fire was now com-
pletely under control.
A BITTER COLD NIGHT.

The glare steadily decreased, and the
hax_'d work of the firemen seemed almost
finished. The night was bitter cold,
and although fighting with fire, the fire-
men suffered severely. I'ywas 2 degrees
below zero, but luckily there was no
wind. There was just the very slightest
breeze from the southwest. This carried
the sparks away from the business por-
tion completely. Just behind the
church is situated a livery stable that
would have made a fierce fire if the
wind had been in the opposite direc-
tion. Next to Wesley Hall is & board-
ing house, and then one of the finest
business blocks in the city. The
possibilities of what the fire might
have led toon a stormy night is ap-
palling to think of. Streams of
water ran down the streets, freezing
as it got further away from the heat
of the fire. On Richmond street the car
tracks are under several inches of ice.
The firemen’s clothes froze stiff, and as
they walked about their frozen trouser
legs scraped together liks boards. How-
ever, none of them were frostbitten.
More than one laid a good foundation
for that ailment that too often over-
gxkes a fireman—inflammatory rheuma-

sm.

: WESLEY HALL GOES, TOO.

Although the fight was fierce, the fire-
men thought they had saved Wesley
Hall. They had maintained a hard
battle with the flames at the juncture
of the church and the hall, and with a
slight wooden protection from the fierce
heat they held their position. Once
there was a cry that the wall was fall-
ing, and they retreated for a ent.
As the intense heat died away they
fought their way through the door
and played on the flames from the in-
side of the church porch. It was 12:40
when somebody noticed that the venti-
lator on the roof of the hall was burn-
ing, and when, a moment afterwards,
the flames burst through the roof in
hailf a dozen different places, the brave
firemen knew that by some means the
fire had worked in under the roof and
got a firm hold between the ceiling and
the top. In a very few minutes the en-
tire roof fell in, and things looked bad.
There were three pianos, four organs,
a $700 library-inside, that might have
been saved, but it was not thought that
the place would burn. On Sunday
morning two small organs were taken
out of the hall intact, and were removed
to Mr. Powell’s office. The library was
also got out in pretty good condition.
The seven streams of water soon began
to affect the volume of flame, and short-
ly after 1 o’clock the fire was under con-
trol again.

THE PROBABLE CAUSE.

It is generally conceded that the fire
must have started from some part of
one of the furnaces. There were four
furnaces under the church, and one un-
der Wesley Ha!ll. The caretaker, Mr.
James Morgan, has occupied the posi-
tlon for the past nineteen years. In
conversation with an “Advertiser” re-
porter yesterday, Mr. Morgan said:
“There was choir practice in the church
Saturday night, and the singers and or-
ganist left shortly after 10 o’clock. I
went my usual rounds and banked
every fire for the night. There are four
furnaces under the church, one in each
corner of the basement, and only three
were burning. There was no possi-
bility for even a fire to ignite in front
of any of them. The floor was of brick,
and the roof was thirteen feet from the
floor. There was a space of six feet
between the top of the furnace and the
church floor, but between the two was a
covering of sheet iron, then brickwork,
and, lastly, several inches of ashes.”

“All kindling and coal was placed at
a safe distance from any of the fur-
naces, and there was no possibility of
the fire being caused by a spark.”

Trustee A. B. Powell subsequently told
the “Advertiser” reporter that one of the
furnaces had not been used this win-
ter until Saturday. Then owing to the
very cold spell the third one was put in
use. It is thought, perhaps, that this
furnace had a defective flue and in some
manner caused the fire,

THE INSURANCE.

The total insurance of the church
buildings, Wesley Hall and contents, is
$26,800 on a valuation of $45,000. It is
divided as follows:

On the church building—$3,000 in the
London and Lancashire; $8,000 in the
Queen’s.

On the organ (value $14,000)—$1,500 in
the andon and Lancashire; $1,500 in the
Queen’s; §3,000 in the Commercial
Union.

On the church furniture—$500 in the
Queen’s; $500 in the London and Lan-
cashire.

On Wesley Hall building—$8,000 in the
Guardian.

On -the furnishings and musical in-
struments, etc., in Wesley Hall—$800.

THE SALVACE.

The library, which is saved,
from $500 to $700. W

Two organs in Wesley Hall, which
were saved, were valued at $50 apiece.

There is a salvage of about $100 on
one of the pianos in Wesley Hall which
w?.rs;’ damaged.

e total salvage (apart from
bricks) will be about $800. g
AN UNLUCKY DECISION.

At the last regular meeting of the
church board of trustees a proposal to
increase the insurance by $10,000 was
vigorously debated, but it was decided
that it would be difficult to carry any
more at present and the suggestion was
thrown out.

PRIVATE LOSSES.

Nearly every member of the church

loses hymn books or Bibles, which are

usually left in the pews. The

loss in this line is estimated at $1,000,
THE PASTOR IS AWAY.

Rev. J. W. Annis is unwell, and for &
week past has been sojourning at Clif-
ton Springs, New York State. It was
his intention to stay three weeks, The
news will be a great shock to the de-
voted pastor. There has been a great
deal of talk for some years of building
a more modern church. The site talkea
of was the corner of Queen’s avenue and
Wellington street, but since the agita~
tion for a new building died away this
property has been sold to the Free Li-
brary directors and the managers of the
Y. M C. A, .

The pulpit was to have been occupled
yesterday morning and evening by Rev.
C. B. Keenleyside, B.A., B.D. A love
feast and fellowship meeting was ai~
ranged to take place at 9:30 a.m., to
have been led by Rev. Dr. Sanderson,
one of the old pastors of the church.

The musical service was a feature of
Queen’s Avenue. A speclal practice
was held on Saturday night, and the
singers did not leave the building until
10:15. The programme for Yyesterday
was to have been: Morning anthem,
“The Radiant Morn,” Woodward; quar-
tet, “Remember Now Thy Creator,”
Rhodes; Harmony Quartet. Evening an~
them, “There is a Holy City,” Shelly;
solos by Misses Fowler and Land; trio,
‘““Holy Redeemer,” Marchetti, Misses
Hartson and Land.

CURIOUS CROWDS.

All day yesterday the scene of the fire
was visited by a curious and constantly
changing crowd. The church was sur-
rounded by a number of (in summer
time) beautiful shade trees. The steam
from the burning pile caught on the
bare limbs of the trees during the night,
and as the morning sun came out the
glistening covering of frost made a very
pretty sight. The thoroughfare past
the church on Park avenue was closed
for traffic owing to the tottering state of
the church walls left standing. Several
policemen were required to keep the in.
Quisitive people from crowding in
among the still smoking ruins, 2

FORCE OF HABIT.

Rev. Mr. Kennedy, a retired minister,
has been a regular attendant at Queen’s
Avenue for a number of years. Mr. Ken-
nedy is an aged 'man, and walks with
his eyes towards the ground. He went
to church as usual yesterday morning
and noticed that the pavement was
rather black under foot, but gave it no
further thought. He came to the church
and had turned into the side entrance
ﬁffore the situation really dawnel on

m.

Mr. Morgan, the caretaker, is also an
elderly man, and came down bright and
early to the church not knowing that a
fire had occurred. As he neared the
scene he raised his head to note the
quarter the wind was in by the direc-
tion of the weather vane, and thus re-
ceived his first intimation of the fire.

Mr. T. R. Parker received just such &
surprise as Mr. Morgan did, as did many
others.

HOW THE FIREMEN FARED,

By the kindness of Mayor Little and
Ald. J. W. Jones the firemen were given
hot coffee and sandwiches at Fysh’s dur-
ing the early morning hours. They re-
mained on the scene of the fire until 7
o’clock this morning.

There were few casualties. Fireman
John Swanwick, a member of No. 2
station, fell off Mrs. Hiscox’s roof,
but escaped with a shaking up. A
piece of roofing fell off Wesley Hall on
the head of Fireman Archie Nicholson,
also of No. 2 station. Luckily he had
put on his helmet a few minutes before,
and his h- 1 was thus protected. He
was stunm ~d slightly cut.

The crowd ...«. Wed at Chief Roe dur-
ing the progress of the fire. The fire-
men thought that the door of Wesley
Hall was locked. and the chief worked
away at it vigrrously with an axe for
some minutes. Eomeone shouted “The
door is open!” and the chief turned the
knob and walked in.

Assistant Chief Andrew McMurchie
entered Wesley Hall by the south door.
It had a spring lock, and when, half
blinded by the smoke, Mr. McMurchie
attempted to leave he could not get out,
Fireman James Gleason was just out-
side and with a few vigorous blows of an
axe he burst the door open and released
his comrade.

BROTHERLY LOVE.

The announcement of the fire from the
various city pulpits was the first news of
it that many received. Feeling re-
ferences were made in all cases.

At the morning service yesterday,
Rev. W. J. Clark referred sympatheti-
cally to the fire, alluding to the afsocia-
tions and memories that belenged to
the house where men, and women, and
children had been acustomed to go in
and out together—the house of God.
Mr. Clark stated that his officials had
been called together for a few moments
before the service, and had decided to
make hearty offer of the use of the main
church building for a Sabbath after-
noon service, if their Queen’s Avenue
friends saw their way to accept. In
every other way the Park Avenue Pres-
byterian congregation desired to place
themselves at the disposal of the Meth-
odist brethren. Mr. Clark further re-
marked that, as good often came out
of evil, he had no doubt the well-known
energy and public spirit of the Queen’s
Avenue congregation would cause a

new and beautiful edifice to arise,

phoenix-like, from the ashes of the
structure that had been destroyed.

ST. ANDREW’S,

When ex-Mayor Spencer, superin-
tendent of the Queen’s Avenue Sunday
School, went home at noon yesterday
he found the entire board of manage-
ment of St. Andrew’s Church awaiting
him with the following letter:

“LONDON, Feb. 3, 1895.
“To the Managing Board of Queen’s

Avenue Methodist Church:

“Brethren,—At a joint meeting held
this morning of the session and board
of management of St. Andrew’s Presby-
terian Church the following resolution
was unanimously adopted:

““That the congregation of St. An-
drew’s Church hereby convey their
deep and sincere sympathy to the con-
gregation of Queen’s Avenue Methodist
Church in the great ioss they have sus-
tained by the destruction of then
church and lecture hall, and we hereby
place at their disposal our church
on BSabbath afternoons for divine
service, and our¢ school room on
Sabbath morning or afternoon at an
hour that can be mutually agreed upon
for their Sabbath school.

“ “We would also invite them to use
our lecture room for week evening ser-
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j‘ces on Tuesdays, Thursdays or Fri-
vs.’

“Signed on behalf of St. Andrew’s
Ongregation. REV. E. H. . SAWERS,
noderator; C. R. BOMERVILLE, clerk
€ session; J. M. MacARTHUR, M.D,,

managing board.”
OTHER KIND OFFERS.

Dean Innes, on behalf of the Church
¢ England, offered the congregation the
se of Cronyn Hall.

The Y. M. C. A. offered the use of
Reir rooms.

Rev, Mr. Lanceley, at Dundas Cen-
‘er, where many of the Queen’s Avenue
vembers worshiped, stated that the
‘egular services this week would be sub-
gct to alteration, to permit the use of
:Ioe edifice by the homeless congrega-

n.

Mr. W. J. Reld offered the use of his
wottage on Dufferin avenue for class or
junday school purposes.

HISTORY OF THE CHURCH.

A very complete history of the Queen’s
Avenue Methodist Church appeared in
he quarter century edition of the “Ad-
rertiser,” published Oct. 29, 1888. It will
)@ read with the greatest interest not
mly by the members of the congrega-
tion, but by all in the city, because of its
reminiscent character. Here it is:

A CENTURY OF METHODISM.,

“Methodism in London and suburbs
has for more than half a century had for
its great center the Queen’s Avenue
Methodist Church, a name adopted some
years ago, when North street as the cog-

nomen of that spacious, maple-lined
highway was discarded. This congre-

|gation has from the first been the center

of wealth, influence and enterprise, the
possession of such vast resources of vi-
tality making it the parent vine from
which others have developed, under cir-
cumstances that soon rendered them
self-supporting and strong. The splendid
edifice that stands, crowned with a lofty
spire, at the corner of Queen’s and Park
avenues, which, with Wesley Hall, the
$9,000 organ and other appointments, is
valued at from: $45,000 to $50,000, seems a
Iong remove, as indeed it is, from the
modest ‘roughcast’ in which a few pio-
neers worshiped after the manner of
John Wesley on Ridout street. It s,
moreover, a great advance on the more
pretentious frame erected at the south-
east carner of King and Talbot streets,
now occupied by a hotel, and its succes-
sor, the Richmond Street Church, on the
east side, a few rods south of Dundas,
where, about 1849, the Rev. John Carroll,
whose name is a household word among
’lder Methodists, occupied the primitive
pulpit and laid the foundation of the
*ause, which soon fixed itself perma-
aently on North street. Space will not
suffice to recount the names of all the
laymen in connection with the congre-
gation whose time and means were in
‘he past so liberally given in aid of build-
ing new local churches, and in further-
Ing mission, Sunday school and educa-
tional work. Many young ministers per-
formed their early work in connection
with the circuit under the direction of
the superintendent, who exercised a
fatherly care over the little causes that
grew up on St. James and Pall Mall
streets, in Petersville, on Adelaide
street, In London South and elsewhere.
A great deal of the preaching in these
lplacez«t was done by the ‘young man’
under the North street ‘superintendent,’
but he was the responsible person for
the circuit and did his share of the mis-
sion work.
BUYING THE SITE.

*The old Richmond Street Church in
which Father Carroll, Dr. Evans and
others held forth, did not keep pace with
the congregation, and under Rev., Wm.
Pollard, the North Street Church came
into existence. The lot was bought from
one Anthony Pegler on Jan. 13, 1852, for
£700. On March 9 of the same year a trus-
tee board meeting was held, consisting
of Messrs. Wm. Glass, Geo. Tyas, John
Elson, 8. Peters, 8. McBride and 8.
Screaton, Rev. Bro. Pollard presiding,
when it was decied to erect a church on
the site purchased. On April 9 the board
decided to engage Mr. Hodgins, a To-
ronto architect, who received £100 for
drawing plans, superintending the work,
etc. On June 26 Wm. Ellis was awarded
the contract for the excavation at£29 15s,
and in January, 1853, the tender for the
brick work was let to Screaton & Grant,
the carpenter work to George Watson,
the glazing and painting to John Bon-
ser, and the plastering to Mr. Tibbs. Ac-
cording to a minute in the secretary’s
books Mrs. Raymond was engaged as
organist in November, 1853, and in July,
1554, the trustees fixed the yearly rental
‘of pews, and decided to seil them by auc-
tion to the highest bidder. Samuel Mc-
Bride received the important appoint-
ment of pew steward and collector ot
rents during the same month. The time
at length arrived when the all-import-
art work drew to a successful close, and
the church was opened for public wor-
ship on July 16, 1854, the collections of
the day amounting to £50 15s. ' Rev. Dr.
Evans, now in his 86th year, and active-
ly engaged every day in charge of the
headquarters of the Western Ontario
Bible Society branch in this city, took
ore of the services on that memorable
occasion.- Rev. Mr. Pollard, who was in
charge during the building of the edi-
fice, left about the time of opening or
before, and was succeeded by Rev. %m.
Wwilkinson. In the year 1856 came the
Rev. J. Douse, and a couple of years
la:er the Rev. Dr. Cooney, a remarkab’e
man in his way, as some of our read-
ers may remember. The St. Paul’s peal
of chimes were wont to ring ouk their
masic across the street while the Wes-
leyan service was in progress, and one
morning Dr. Cooney stopped to inform
the congregr tion that the only pleasure
thyse bells ever gave him was when
they stopped ringing. In 1860 Rev. G.
R. Sanderson became pastor. After a
continuous, active, ministerial service
of 52 years he was superannuated at
the London Conference of June, 1888,
held in the same old edifice, and he is
now in his declining years a member of
the congregation over which he 28
years ago presided as pastor. Though
on the retired list he still answers nu-
merous calls to fill pulpits in the city
and elsewhere.

OLD-TIME PASTORS.

«pollowing Rev. Mr. Sanderson in
the North Street pastorage were Rev.
R. Jones and Rev. John Potts (1863),
Rev. J. H. Bishop, Rev. W, J. Hunter,
Rev. Dr. Elliott, Rev. Wm. Briggs, and
about 1871 Rev. Dr. Wm. Jeffers, father
of Mr. J. Frith Jeffers, now of this city,
and the honored superintendent of the
Queen’s Avenue Methodist Sunday
school. Rev. James Hannon, a late
president of the Guelph Conference, suc-
ceeded Dr. Jeffers, and then came the
Rev. James Graham, that sturdy, out-
spoken, quick-witted preacher whom
the London Conference last summer
placed in the president’s chair, The
Rev. John Philp ‘was the next regular
occupant of the Queen’s Avenue pulpit,
and since leaving kere he has held the
leading pastorates in Canada, including
Great St. James of Montreal. An el
quent and magnetic preacher, Rev.
Gaetz, followed ; but the s
the work on his nervous organism

proved too great, and he sought restor-
r L@nﬁnmdonl’;uc'!hr_q). o
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KINGSMILL'S

Dundas and Carling Streets.

—

335 Yards Yard wide

Gray Cotton

For $1.
The heaviest in town.

Compare

256 Yards Yard Wide Heavier

Gray Cotton
For $1.

- Compare

| 16 2-3 Yards Heavy

Gray Cotton

For $1.

Compare
1423 Yards Yard wide

Gray Sheeting

For $1.
This is the heaviest in the trade.

‘ Compare

123 Yards Heavy Twill

SHEETING

For $1.
Free from dressing.

- Compare

10 Yards
Fast Color American

Dress Prints

For 75c.

Compare

141/ Yards American

f

For $1.
FULL YARD WIDE.

I

Compare

123 Yards Heavier

For $1. - .
Free from dressing.

Compare

10 Yards American
“Fruit of the Loom.”

For $1.
The Best in the Trade.

Compare

10 Yards Heavier

I

h
36 inches wide, for $1.
“Dwight Anchor.”

Compare

72 inches
Heavy Twilled

Only 20c Yard.
SPECIAL VALUE.

Compare

42-Inch Heavy

Pillow Cotton

Extra Quality.
12¢ Yard.

O Z2O0--00G =pmA

Compare

AGENTS FOR

Butterick’s % =«

Patterns and

| Publications
THE BEST IN THE WORLD.




